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1,377,000 local companies on the N
Companies Register as at 31 March 2019 r
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84,695
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84,695 companies struck off the
Companies Register

71,758

71,758 [E/A R EHEE
71,758 companies deregistered

1,224
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1,224 companies dissolved by
liquidation

59,242
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59,242 enquiry calls
received for the Registry's

services — a daily average
of 162
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135,097 new companies
incorporated — a daily average
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15,847 enquiry calls 9,467 enquiry calls

received for the new received for the new

regime for trust or regime for the keeping

company service providers of Significant Controllers

— a daily average of 65 Registers by companies —

a daily average of 39
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6,419
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6,419 trust or company
service provider licences
granted

13,547

BE_T-—NF=RA=+—H " i
BEFEMMNERE 13,547 A

13,547 users subscribed to electronic

onil

6,295,954

%5 6,295,954 N RBIEAR
e — F1H8\A 17,249 XX

6,295,954 visits to our website —
a daily average of 17,249

903,332
ERRSEEETARNEMRS
903,332 5’

903,332 company searches
conducted through mobile devices

99.5%

T LET AR EMAI LR EE
99.5%

Over 99.5% company searches
made online

—O...____

news as at 31 March 2019
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5,062,460

BRI 15428%H 5,062,460 =
Fi19&H 13,870 =

5,062,460 searches of document image
records — a daily average of 13,870

400,327

EREEHRSH 400,327 R
400,327 searches of the Directors’ Index

335,424

ERNRENE 335424 R

335,424 searches of company
particulars
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i To achieve world-wide ‘ 5 : MISsSsion :
1 recognition as an excellent g &t . o
' Companies Registry giving the " P s ™
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1
i To provide our customers with efficient, cost-effective and quality :
" services and Facilities to incorporate companies and to register 1
" and inspect company documents. 1
I
" To continuously review and enhance our services and facilities
v and undertake effective enforcement, taking account of the best
“ modern technology available. "
“ To motivate our staff to achieve organisational ,’
= % \ objectives by adopting appropriate human ¢
= e = resource management strategies. .
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1
To care for and respect our customers by listening to them and | =
taking into account their needs and expectations when shaping the ' /I
types and quality of service which we deliver. :

To care for and respect our colleagues as a quality service and — —
effective enforcement can be delivered and undertaken only
through dedicated people of high calibre working together as a
team. :

To change for the better by remaining receptive to new ideas,
technologies and work practices so as to enhance the level and I —
quality of our services and facilities.
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General Manager's Foreword

% BESEEAXER2018- 19 FEATDFIMEEFER (T
' BTER,) FA FREBERZFIEEEHIERIE -

a FEEE -
‘ | am pleased to present the Annual Report of the Companies
Registry (“the Registry”) for the year 2018-19. During
the year, we strove to facilitate businesses through

the implementation of various regulatory regimes and
initiatives.
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Promoting a Trusted Business Environment

Established as an independent government department in May 1993,
the Registry started operating as a trading fund in August the same
year. We are primarily responsible for administering and enforcing
the provisions of the Companies Ordinance and related legislation. To
foster Hong Kong's competitiveness as an ideal place to do business,
our mission is to provide quality services for companies, their
shareholders and directors to facilitate their businesses.

To promote a trusted business environment and strengthen Hong
Kong's position as an international financial and commercial centre,
we implemented several regulatory initiatives during the year:

« Took up a new role as the licensing authority for trust or company
service providers (“TCSPs") in March 2018;

« Introduced new requirements on the keeping of Significant
Controllers Registers (“SCRs") in March 2018 to provide greater
transparency of corporate ownership;

- Promulgated the Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing (“AML/CTF") Guidelines for TCSPs and Licensed Money
Lenders (the latter in my role as the Registrar of Money Lenders)
in the year to enhance the relevant sectors' capabilities to combat
money laundering and terrorist financing so as to fulfil Hong
Kong's obligation as a member jurisdiction of the Financial Action
Task Force; and

« Prioritised the Registry’'s work on AML/CTF by strengthening
the Registry's enforcement efforts, in particular, through setting
up new inspection teams to carry out more site inspections on
companies and TCSPs and issuing advisory letters and warning
letters to ensure proper compliance with regulatory and AMUCTF
requirements.

Annual Report 2018-19 R~
=105
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Facilitating Businesses

Over the year, we continued to update our policies, regulations and
processes so that they meet the changing needs of companies and
the community. We also invested in our information technology
systems to enhance the efficiency of starting a business in Hong
Kong, and in innovative ideas, digitalisation and new technology
to improve service delivery and enhance customer experience. In
this regard, several new regimes and initiatives were launched in
2018-19:

« Implemented the Companies (Amendment) (No. 2) Ordinance 2018
in February 2019 to improve the operation of the new Companies
Ordinance, reduce compliance costs and better address the needs
of small and medium-sized enterprises;

« Introduced open-ended fund companies in July 2018 to diversify
Hong Kong's fund types, expand the fund distribution network
and promote fund origination;

o Started the revamp of the Integrated Companies Registry
Information System in October 2018 to leverage on innovative
technological advances, support the increasing workload and
improve customer service; and

« Implemented the development of a new website for the
Registry to provide a more effective and efficient channel for
communicating with our stakeholders.

Our Performance and Achievements

The Regqistry continued to enhance its customer service on all fronts.
In 2018-19, we:

- Handled the incorporation of 135,097 new companies;
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Attained 1,377,000 local companies on the register as at 31 March
2019;

Granted 6,419 trust or company service provider licences;

Received 3,658,405 documents for registration, a significant
increase of 26.3%, partly owing to the commencement of the
new TCSP and SCR regimes in March 2018, causing an influx of
documents reporting changes in company secretaries, registered
office addresses and the locations of registers; and

Processed 5,062,460 searches of document image records, an
increase of 11.2% with 903,332 company searches conducted
through mobile devices, representing a drastic increase of 49.9%.
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Our commitment to building a First class Registry also received a
great deal of recognition during the year. We received:

the Best SME's Partner Award for the 10™ consecutive year, with
the Gold Award in 2018;

« the Manpower Developer accreditation under the Employees
Retraining Board Manpower Developer Award Scheme in
recognition of the Registry’'s outstanding achievements in
manpouwer training and development;

« the 2018-19 Partner Employer Award granted by the Hong Kong
General Chamber of Small and Medium Business; and

- the Bronze Award in the 2018-19 MERCURY Excellence Awards
for our 2017-18 Annual Report; and the Honours Awards in the
2018 International Annual Report Competition and 2018 Astrid
Awards for our 2016-17 Annual Report.

According to the World Bank's “Doing Business 2019" report, Hong
Kong achieved a fifth ranking out of 190 economies in starting a
business.
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CoIRES Appreciation

BE—F > BZFNIERRER  BRO For the many achievements of the Registry over the past year,
BHEFHNENRNLZEREEBRIE—EH | would like to express my sincere gratitude to our stakeholders

A R ERMPNEREE E— for their strong support. | would also like to extend my heartfelt
EiE o appreciation to all my colleagues for their dedication and hard work
as we scale new heights.

E
3 e

ERRATHL Ms Ada LL Chung, JP
NFRIGEMERRE Registrar of Companies and
AT RS E RS BKE General Manager, Companies Registry Trading Fund

REKRE HPIBROMIFEENRES -
(E&EEIENS—EEENEEi -

Looking ahead, we will strive to maintain
Hong Kong's competitiveness as an ideal
place to do business.
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’ =2' Ms Ada LL CHUNG ' MsKittyLctsur 0000 Miss Hilda HM CHANG \
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¢ Registrar of Companies Registry Solicitor Registry Manager '
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Registry Manager Business Manager Deputy Principal Solicitor
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==2' Mrs Christine Frances SIT Ms Winnie WY CHEUNG
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Assistant Principal Solicitor Departmental Secretary
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AT EEM R AEE
Registry Manager

' ATRMEEE
. Registry Manager

DRI RAGGIFAT
Company Formation &
Enforcement

SERARRIE
REETMINER
Registry for Trust
and Company Service
Providers

ATRX M

Registration

AREM
Public Search

= PR

Customer Services

B
General Support
Services

Annual Report 2018-19 R

Brief Introduction to the Companies
Registry Trading Fund

The Companies Registry (“the Registry”) became an independent
government department on 1 May 1993 and started to operate as
a trading fund on 1 August 1993 upon the passing of a resolution
by the Legislative Council. As a trading fund, the Reqistry operates
under commercial principles on a self-financing basis in accordance
with the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430).

required to achieve a reasonable return on the average net fixed

The Registry is

assets employed by it and meet expenses incurred in the provision of
services out of its income.

Organisation Structure

As at 31 March 2019, the total headcount of the Registry was 518, of
which 379 were civil servants and 139 were contract staff,

ARRMEER |
Registrar of Companies !

ARERREE L mEm®E
Registry Solicitor -Deputg Principal SO|ICIt0I‘. .

%?%%‘“IE
Business Manager

NRENE

Company Law Reform

B17%

Financial Services

prEE b

Legal Services

HhE

Development

-Gk S¥5
Information
Technology

HHEHEIER
Information
Technology Project

BB ErEIEIE
Information
Technology Programme
Management
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Management Board

The Registry’'s management board sets the strategic direction,
formulates policies and manages the Registry's business to achieve
its vision and mission. Chaired by the Registrar of Companies and
composed of all directorate officers, the board meets regularly
to discuss, review and monitor the major issues on the Registry’s
operation and performance.

Corporate Governance Framework

The Registry accords top priority to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance. We believe that good corporate governance
is vital For promoting sustainability of the Registry as well as
upholding public confidence and trust in its capability and integrity.
The Corporate Governance Statement promulgated in May 2012
outlines the Corporate Governance Framework of the Registry and
provides guidance on the application of its governance principles.

HERit R ERREE

— Commitment to

EHESR

Competent and accountable
management board

B E S EEEE

Effective risk management

RIFHERRAHRARF
Good customer and
public relations

corporate social responsibility
T praspioms o—

=K FER
TtEER TERRNAREZERK
High Standards Robust internal control systems

of Corporate
Governance

\/jgj”x ——— @ ———— -
s
I
. = EERER
| | B ERRR
I | Transparent and
/ : timely reporting systems
\
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TtEIEEFEEE Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

KEMNDEEXREFLREBFESHIETE The Registry is committed to maintaining the highest ethical

£ WHEDOME  BIREBERBEST standards in conducting business and caring for the community, the

TEit o Akt ARE_ZE—ZSFELABH environment and the well-being of its staff members. To this end,

SrEHESOHREER  BRAREBETL the Registry issued a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy Statement

¥ EEERIME o in September 2010 that sets out the framework for discharging its
corporate social responsibilities.

EEIESEHE
m Framework of Corporate and Social Responsibilities
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April 2018

The Companies Registry’s 2016-17 Annual Report won
the Honours Award in the Astrid Awards 2018 under
the “Annual Reports - Not-for-Profit Organisations:
Traditional Format - Other Countries” category

—_E-N\FHlmA
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April 2018
A delegation of officials from Shaanxi

Administration for Industry and Commerce
visited the Companies Registry

“E-N\¥4hA
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AREAABINMNBEREZER
ST

May 2018

The Companies Registry was
accredited as a Manpower
Developer under the Employees
Retraining Board Manpower
Developer Award Scheme in
recognition of its outstanding
achievements in manpower
training and development
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May 2018

The delegation of the Companies
Registry attended the Corporate
Registers Forum 2018 in Botswana

mt SAE T
AREMRBEF RS PR
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June 2018

The Companies Registry won the
Best SME's Partner Award for the 10"
consecutive year and received the Gold
Award in 2018

—_E-N\&ERB
BREATIEITHSMEEREXERE
ATIEEME

June 2018

A delegation of officials from the
Administration for Industry and Commerce
of the Guangdong Province visited the
Companies Registry
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July 2018

A delegation of officials from Sichuan Provincial Department of Commerce visited the
Companies Registry
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July 2018

A new regime for open-ended fund

companies was implemented on 30 July
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August 2018

The Companies Registry's 2016-17 Annual Report won the Honours Award
in the 2018 International Annual Report Competition Awards under the
“Interior Design: Non-Profit Organisation: Government Agencies & Offices”
category
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September 2018
A delegation of officials from the Indonesia Investment Coordinating Board
visited the Companies Registry
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October 2018
The Registrar of Companies visited the Commerce and Movable Property Registry of Macao
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Partner Employer Award B 2551
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October 2018

The Companies Registry received the 2018-19 Partner Employer Award from the
Hong Kong General Chamber of Small and Medium Business
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December 2018

A delegation of officials from the United Front Work Department of the Hainan Provincial
Committee visited the Companies Registry
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"""""""" LN February 2019
\ L The Companies Registry’s 2017-18 Annual Report won
—E-Nn&E_"H . ' the Bronze Award in the 2018-19 MERCURY Excellence
(20185 AT (182T) (8B2%) “ v Awards under the “Annual Report - Overall Presentation:
1EE)Y = B—B =k \\ ‘\ Government Agencies & Offices” category
%
February 2019 Ba S e e e =
The Companies (Amendment) (No. 2) ¢
Ordinance 2018 was implemented on ’
1 February ,'
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With an ever-changing business environment, it is essential
that Hong Kong continues to be a clean and attractive place for
business. The Registry strives to promote a trusted regulatory
environment so that investors and businesses are confident in
their pursuits of success in Hong Kong. Over the past year, we
have implemented several regulatory initiatives in an effort to
keep the market transparent and enhance Hong Kong's anti-
money laundering and counter-terrorist financing ("AML/CTF")
capabilities.
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Trust or Company Service Provider
Licensing Regime

To strengthen Hong Kong's regulatory regime to combat money
laundering and terrorist financing, a new licensing regime for trust
or company service providers (“TCSPs”) has been implemented since
1 March 2018. The introduction of the new regime turned a new
page in the regulation of TCSPs in Hong Kong. For the first time,
Hong Kong's TCSP sector is subject to a statutory licensing regime
administered by a reqgulatory authority, namely, the Registry.

Under the new regime, TCSPs must pass a “fit-and-proper” test
before a licence is granted for carrying on a trust or company
service business in Hong Kong. TCSP licensees must comply with all
relevant statutory requirements, including the statutory customer
due diligence and record-keeping requirements. Officers of the
Registry conduct site inspections or interviews to ensure that
applicants for TCSP licences and licensees are compliant with all
relevant requirements.

The new regime effectively screens out unscrupulous and
problematic TCSPs. It ensures licensees’ compliance with the
relevant requirements and helps strengthen Hong Kong's position
as a major international financial and business centre. As the vast
majority of businesses in Hong Kong are using the services provided
by TCSP licensees, the new regime also reinforces the confidence of
the business community in the TCSP sector as trusted partners.

Up to 31 March 2019, 7,258 applications were received for the grant
of a TCSP licence. 6,419 licences were granted with 411 applications
rejected or withdrawn.
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Significant Controllers Register Regime

To enhance the transparency of corporate ownership, new
requirements for the keeping of Significant Controllers Registers
("SCRs") by companies were introduced under the Companies
(Amendment) Ordinance 2018 on 1 March 2018. Companies
incorporated in Hong Kong are required to obtain and maintain up-
to-date beneficial ownership information by way of keeping a SCR.
The SCR should be open for inspection by law enforcement officers
upon demand. To assist companies in their preparation of the SCR
according to the new requirements, a dedicated hotline has been
made available since late January 2018. Up to 31 March 2019, over
27,000 verbal enquiries and nearly 2,000 email enquiries were
received. There were over 949,000 visits to the dedicated section
on SCRs on the website of the Registry. To ensure the proper
keeping of SCRs, the Registry conducted site inspections regularly.
The results of the inspections were satisfactory and show that most
of the companies complied with the requirements.

Enhanced Enforcement

To fulfil Hong Kong's obligation as a member jurisdiction of the
Financial Action Task Force, we have also prioritised the Registry's
work on AML/CTF by strengthening our enforcement capacity during
the year. To ensure that companies comply with the statutory
requirements under the Companies Ordinance, the Registry has
expanded the Inspection Unit of the Enforcement Section to enhance
the site inspection programme on companies. The Inspection Unit
conducts compliance checks with regard to the requirements on the
display of company names and the keeping of various records under
the Companies Ordinance, including but not limited to the Register of
Members, Register of Directors, Register of Company Secretary and
the Significant Controllers Register. New inspection and enforcement
teams were also set up in the Registry for TCSPs to ensure that
the new statutory AML/CTF requirements are complied with by
applicants and holders of TCSP licences. Prosecution summonses
will be issued where appropriate in cases of default. The Registry
also takes proactive action to strike off companies which are not in
operation or carrying on business in order to maintain an up-to-date
Companies Register.
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In parallel, the Money Lenders Section of the Companies Registry
also conducts site inspections and compliance checks in the
administration and enforcement of the Money Lenders Ordinance
(Cap. 163) and to ensure that AML/CTF requirements are properly
complied with by licensed money lenders. Licensed money lenders
have to ensure that they put in place proper policies, systems and
measures to conduct customer due diligence procedures and keep
related records. More stringent licensing conditions have been
imposed by the Licensing Court on money lenders.

New Anti-Money Laundering Guidelines

To foster the Government’'s ongoing efforts in combating money
laundering and terrorist financing, the Registry implemented two
new AMU/CTF Guidelines for holders of TCSP licences and Licensed
Money Lenders in the year.

Additional Licensing Conditions for
Money Lenders

Since October 2018, two more stringent licensing conditions have
been imposed on licensed money lenders. Under these new
conditions, a money lender is required to comply with specific AML/
CTF requirements as set out in the AML/CTF Guideline. A money
lender is also required, if a referee is involved in a loan application,

to obtain such referee’s written consent before granting the loan.

y
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Over the year, we continued to update our policies, regulations
and processes so that they meet the changing needs of companies
and the community. We were also committed to investing in our
information technology systems to increase the efficiency of
starting a business in Hong Kong. The Registry continues to invest
in innovative ideas, digitalisation and new technology. With a
strong belief that a stable and efficient technology platform will
improve service delivery and enhance customer experience, we
strive to Facilitate businesses and provide our customers with
efficient, cost effective and quality services.
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Implementation of the Companies
(Amendment) (No. 2) Ordinance 2018

The Companies (ARmendment) (No. 2) Ordinance 2018 (“Amendment
Ordinance”) came into effect on 1 February 2019. The Amendment
Ordinance seeks to incorporate new developments since the
commencement of the new Companies Ordinance (“CQ"), improve the
clarity and operation of the new CO and further facilitate businesses.
Major amendments include updating the accounting-related
provisions to reflect the latest accounting standards, expanding
the types of companies within corporate groups to benefit from
reporting exemption and streamlining the administrative, procedural
and technical requirements regulating local and non-Hong Kong
companies to facilitate compliance. These amendments can help
reduce compliance costs and better address the needs of small and
medium-sized enterprises. Hong Kong's position as an international
commercial and business centre can also be strengthened as a result.

New Open-ended Fund Companies
Regime

On 30 July 2018, a new form of companies, the open-ended fund
companies (“OFCs"), was introduced in Hong Kong. The Registry is
primarily responsible for the incorporation and statutory corporate
filings of OFCs under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571). The new OFC structure allows investment funds to be set
up in the form of a company, coupled with the Flexibility for investors
to trade the funds through the creation and cancellation of shares. It
also diversifies Hong Kong's fund domiciliation platform and expands
the fund distribution network while promoting fund origination and
facilitating the development of Hong Kong's asset management
industry. This will help Hong Kong enhance its competitiveness as a
business hub.
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The Next Generation of the Integrated
Companies Registry Information System

Since the launch of the Integrated Companies Registry Information
System (“ICRIS") in 2005, it has been the core information system of
the Registry. Over the years, ICRIS has been enhanced from time to
time to cater for legislative and procedural changes and to provide a
wide range of electronic services through the Cyber Search Centre,
the Company Search Mobile Service, the e-Registry portal and the CR
e-Filing Mobile Application.

In order to keep pace with rapid technological advances, handle the
increasing workload and meet public expectations, a Departmental
Information Technology Planning study was conducted in 2016
to thoroughly review the Registry’'s IT system and relevant
infrastructure. It was recommended that the existing system be
completely revamped. A project entitled “The Next Generation
of Integrated Companies Registry Information System for the
Companies Registry” (“Revamped ICRIS") commenced in October 2018,
The Revamped ICRIS will replace all the existing information systems
as a mission-critical IT cornerstone that supports the Registry's core
business operations, including registration of companies, statutory
returns and public search services. The Revamped ICRIS is expected
to be launched in late 2022.

The Revamped ICRIS will be supported by a robust, secure
and scalable IT infrastructure. To Ffacilitate businesses, the
enhancements will bring about improvement and consistency in
customer experience through the provision of a one-stop website
for all electronic services - a single platform for all relevant
information, applications and interaction between the Registry
and its stakeholders. Through the centralised access to business
applications such as company searches, filing of documents and
other electronic services, customers will be able to submit company

information for registration more efficiently.

| S —
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Financial Performance

The Registry's performance in 2018-19 remained steady. Revenue
amounted to $651.1 million, an increase of 0.5% compared to 2017-18
(2017-18: $647.7 million). Operating costs rose to $389.8 million,
a 12.4% increase compared to 2017-18, mainly caused by a 16.0%
rise in staff costs. As a result, profit from operations decreased
13.2% to $261.3 million (2017-18: $300.9 million).

L A B & F] Revenue and Profit

2017-18

LBEE#ETE
HKS million

LBEE#ETE
HKS million

[ ELON
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Profit from operations

The Regqistry's sources of revenue comprise mainly the incorporation
of new companies, the registration of annual returns and searches
for company information, constituting more than 85% of the total
revenue. In 2018-19, revenue from incorporation fees dropped 13.2%
to $228.2 million (2017-18: $262.9 million), which corresponds with
the decrease in the number of companies incorporated during the
year. Growth in revenue from annual registration fees and search
fees continued in 2018-19, with increases of about 5.0% and 10.6%
respectively.



o Bi#% K %75 [E B8 Financials and Business Review

2305

LA

IZ A Revenue
201718

ii’*"

2018-19 hES

-

35.0% 35.0% 158% 18% 27% 14% 83%

40.6% 335% 144% 18% 1.7% - 8.0%

M ARMIEmE B AEERRETE N E=mRENKRE
Incorporation fees Annual registration fees Search and copying fees

N R HERE [ 2B RARWREER B GRS ATRREEGRS
Charges registration fees Fees for administration and collection services HETWE

Fees under TCSPs

B EwER licensing regime

Other fees

iZ{ERK A Operating Costs

2017-18

25.8%

[ =R ) W EEEE
Staff costs Operating expenses

2018-19 £9.4%

W E R

Depreciation and amortisation




AEZFR-—EEVHERIEREERF
TARREHAFEZREHRES - HPEXR
ZEEEEHE%IE%@* FIREFAY T AREMARR

B R# (BRI EM B EE
*m"aﬁb‘ﬂz) REBEE  BUREABARALIR
HEVBRTS - BRAEHNEB/RARERFL
AIRIEBER  MARNEBRELANERE
BRMAHAE B R BT H IR S - A
REMEEBRRERERNER » WEMEER
BN EFENBEEE -

E 2]

AEFTRMMRT  ETEEEWIEARG
i BELEEHBER ' UERAARALTIRR
AR > BMMNRGSEEELMAAEAL
AEH -B-E-—N\F=ZHF—HE £&
HRBHEREREQEREINATRSE
REELRE - BT HEER  FREBS
EFRERMEIES  TESRNHEBILRE
RigeXEEN -

NCIEE 31 oA

EZE-N\E—AFE  ££E 135097 &
HARGEMARL - F9EMEIMER 551/ -
B8 35% BEEMERE 0 2E8 HIH:H%J
(wwuw.eregistry.gov.hk) IR H AW —iH X E
FARGEMEEEERLRFEAR "(RTR
2 RMERARER  LEFEXZAERR °
EMEMAZINAREF  $982% 2H—
ZR BB AR ©

SHEHAREMRIMNBBHREHEETM
08 > R—FRIRHEILLE T 12.8% » &i %
EHREIAEFER AR RFIRMEE B
HEMH - E=F—N\F=ZHF—HEEH
HBMHET  EAEFSARRFREM
BWRANRGEMERRFFERE - 7507
EEBRMEANARMRS - AR RIFE
BRGNS - BAFIERHAT
BR¥ (BIEMILARBIRSE) -

Over the years, the Registry has been able to operate on a self-
financing basis and provide funds for its sustainable development.
This includes a revamp of the existing ICRIS, including the
establishment of new IT infrastructure, in the next few years to
enhance the Registry’s services for the public. As the Registry's
performance is highly dependent on company activities which will
fluctuate owing to changes in global and local economic conditions,
we will keep exercising stringent control over the use of resources

and adopting a prudent approach to financial planning.

Business Review

The Registry’'s services mainly comprise the registration of
companies and statutory returns and the provision of services
for members of the public to obtain company information held
on statutory registers. The scope of our services has expanded
to include the licensing of TCSPs with effect from 1 March 2018.
Through the introduction of new technology and innovative ideas for
the purpose of facilitating businesses, the Registry always strives to
improve its services and productivity.

Incorporation of Companies

In 2018-19, a total of 135,097 new companies were incorporated,
an average of 551 per working day. Over 35% of the incorporation
applications were delivered electronically through the one-stop
electronic company incorporation and business registration platform
at the e-Registry (wwuw.eregistry.gov.hk) and the “CR eFiling” mobile
application. About 82% of the new companies incorporated were
one-member companies.

There was a notable year-on-year decrease of 12.8% in the
number of new companies incorporated this year, which was partly
attributable to the introduction of a new licensing regime for TCSPs.
Under the new licensing regime introduced on 1 March 2018, a TCSP
has to apply for a licence from the Registrar of Companies before
it can provide trust or company services in Hong Kong. Company
service providers which fail to obtain a licence have to cease to
provide company services including company incorporation.

Annual Report 2018-19 F#R 31
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Registration of Documents

A total of 3,658,405 documents were received for registration by
the Registry in 2018-19, which represents a significant increase
of 26.3% over 2017-18. An average of 14,932 documents were
received per working day.

Since the commencement of the TCSP and SCR regimes in
March 2018, there was an influx of documents reporting changes
in company secretaries and registered office addresses and the
locations of registers. Other documents received by the Registry,
including the articles of association, notifications of appointments,
resignations and changes in particulars of directors and company
secretaries, returns of allotments and annual returns, provide
information on different aspects of a company’s operations.

Public Searches

In 2018-19, there were a total of 5,062,460 searches of document
image records, a daily average of 13,870, representing an increase
of 11.2% over 2017-18. The numbers of searches of company

particulars and the Directors’ Index also rose 14.9% to 335,424 and
3.9% to 400,327 respectively.
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Since the launch of the full-scale Company Search Mobile Service
in May 2016, members of the public can enjoy conducting company
searches on the mobile platform other than the Registry’s Cyber
Search Centre. 903,332 company searches were conducted through
mobile devices in 2018-19, representing a surge of 49.9% compared
to the previous year.

Licensing of TCSPs

The Registry has taken up a new role as the licensing authority for
TCSPs since 1 March 2018. Up to 31 March 2019, 7,258 applications
for TCSP licences were received and 6,419 TCSP licences were
granted. There were also 411 applications which were rejected or
withdrawn after investigation, which accounted for 5.7% of the
applications received.

To promote the new regime and better assist TCSPs, a new website
wwuw.tcsp.cr.gov.hk has been set up to provide detailed information
relating to the new regime, including external circulars, guidelines,
specified forms and frequently asked questions. The number of
visits to the website reached 481,075 in 2018-19. The Register of
TCSP Licensees can be searched for free at the website to check
whether a TCSP is licensed before members of the public decide
whether its services should be engaged.

Applicants for TCSP licences can submit applications as well as other
types of applications and documents electronically at the website.
As at 31 March 2019, there were 3,059 registered users of the
website for the TCSP licensing regime. A telephone hotline has also
been set up since 25 January 2018 for handling relevant enquiries.
In 2018-19, a total of 15,847 enquiry calls, a daily average of 65,
were received regarding the new regime for TCSPs.
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Appendix A — Report of the Director of Audit and Annual Accounts

B EERNS
Report of the Director of Audit
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RERR (BEESMEN) £ 7(5) ERES
ERBEFERIETEE - HARBAFEIM
RABNER  FENARE T EFIEIRES
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EREZFEAEBTHMERET - AEE
BAMESHNEN BERERENEE AT
B ERIEHER -

Audit Commission
The Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Legislative Council

Opinion

| certify that | have examined and audited the financial statements
of the Companies Registry Trading Fund set out on pages 40
to 74, which comprise the statement of financial position as at
31 March 2019, and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the

year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Companies Registry Trading Fund as at
31 March 2019, and of its results of operations and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the manner provided in section 7(4) of the Trading
Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430).

Basis for opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with section 7(5) of the Trading
Funds Ordinance and the Rudit Commission auditing standards. My
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities For the audit of the financial statements
section of my report. | am independent of the Companies Registry
Trading Fund in accordance with those standards, and | have fulfilled
my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with those standards.
| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

™\
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R EIMEEEEEBIE TN
HRMAFRBIEE

AFRGMEEEERERKIEARERRES
SR AEETN(ETEMBRESER) &
(EEETRA) E7(4) REREEMSPE
RIS KRB B R DRAANERES -
EMBERETFHERURGFRERMENAIE
KEHFRERIL ©

ERBEMBREE  ARGEMREEEREM
AR RTGHARGEMREERSHEL
ERIRED - IRTEERIBR T K 5E REFER
EHANEIR LUK BELFAE AR -

Other information

The General Manager, Companies Registry Trading Fund is responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information included in the Companies Registry Trading Fund’s
2018-19 Annual Report, other than the financial statements and my
auditor’s report thereon.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and | do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
| have performed, | conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, | am required to report that fact. | have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the General Manager, Companies
Registry Trading Fund for the financial statements

The General Manager, Companies Registry Trading Fund is responsible
for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the General Manager, Companies Registry Trading Fund
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the General Manager, Companies
Registry Trading Fund is responsible for assessing the Companies
Registry Trading Fund’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Audit Commission auditing standards will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Audit Commission auditing
standards, | exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. | also:;

— identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

— obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Companies Registry Trading Fund's
internal control;

— evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the General Manager, Companies Registry Trading Fund;

Y
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— ¥IE AT GEMREEESBKIELUIFERL — conclude on the appropriateness of the General Manager,

EEABERNBEZESIAE » WRIE
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ERBEEENENBREAREBNERT
fEEM - MRBBBFEEATEEM
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Companies Registry Trading Fund's use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Companies Registry Trading
Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention
in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my
opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of my auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Companies Registry Trading Fund to
cease to continue as a going concern; and

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and

P e

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

BifEER
(BRBEEEERRIGHLIT)

Ms Hildy Chan
Assistant Director of Audit (Acting)
for Director of Audit

BETE Audit Commission

EREF 26"™ Floor, Immigration Tower
HTITE 7 5% 7 Gloucester Road
ABEFKIE 26 12 Wanchai, Hong Kong

2019 F 9 A1 H 11 September 2019
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Annual Accounts

ARl REERE
#Z 2019 &£ 3 A 31 HIEAYEAFIREF®

Annual Accounts of the Companies Registry Trading Fund
For the Year Ended 31 March 2019

1RIE (EEERIEG) 8 7(4) EERBRIER
Prepared and submitted pursuant to section 7(4) of the Trading Funds Ordinance
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NRFEFMREREEEASEENRER
Companies Regqistry Trading Fund
Statement of Comprehensive Income

BE209F 331 HLEEE

for the year ended 31 March 2019

(U5 )

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

REEFENZBA
BERRE

EERF

LAt A

EREEFI
Eofth 2 S

FEAZEIE

BEEED#HRE

Revenue from contracts with customers
Operating costs

Profit from operations

Other income

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Rate of return on fixed assets

651,091 647,733
(389,834) (346,813)
261,257 300,920
37,818 38,965
299,075 339,885
299,075 339,885
75.8% 93.6%

25 46 HE 74 BRI RARMIEREM—ED -

The notes on pages 46 to 74 form part of these financial statements.
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Companies Regqistry Trading Fund
Statement of Financial Position

$2019% 3 831H
as at 31 March 2019

(U5 )

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

FREBEE
ME ~ ket
Bl EE
SMERETFH

nENEE

AR ~ RE K
HAuFEUFIR

FELSRAE N L IRTX
RITIER

RE RIRITHEER

mENRfE
EHEUTA
EREE

FEAIIRFR EL Mt RE(S
IR

FEATRAE AN LIRTX
(R

BN E R

HEEREREARE

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Placement with the Exchange Fund

Current assets

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Amounts due from related parties
Bank deposits

Cash and bank balances

Current liabilities
Deferred revenue
Customers' deposits

Trade and other payables

Amounts due to related parties

Provision for employee benefits

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

1)

(12(a))

(12(b))

(13)

301,923 305,999
46,532 34,631
476,060 455,124
824,515 795,754
13,680 14,109
1,420 1,073
944,900 711,900
91,822 23,104
1,051,822 750,186
(17,041) (5,136)
(16,689) (13,147)
(50,955) (26,100)
(129,817) (150,883)
(1,093) (1,116)
(215,595) (196,382)
836,227 553,804
1,660,742 1,349,558
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NEFFMREEERSIIFRNR #)
Companies Regqistry Trading Fund
Statement of Financial Position (continued)

$2019% 3 831H
as at 31 March 2019

1

1

|

1

1

1

|

:

]

]

1

1

1

1

1

:

1

I ( LUBHT TG )

. (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1

1

i JERENEE Non-current liabilities

1

i EHEUTA Deferred revenue (12(b)) (14,808) (5.216)
1

i & EnaF|# i Provision for employee benefits (13) (66,400) (63,883)
1

i (81,208) (69,099)
1

. HEERE NET ASSETS 1,579,534 1,280,459
1

i

! BERRE#EE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

1

: EEELER Trading fund capital (14) 138,460 138,460
1

i BEES Development fund (15) 550,000 -
1

i REBRF Retained earnings (16) 891,074 1,141,999
1

1

d 1,579,534 1,280,459
:

1

| 25 46 BE 74 BNV AR TEHRERAN—EE5 o

: The notes on pages 46 to 74 form part of these financial statements.

:

|

[}

}

}

]

[}

[}

[}

[}

[}

1

1

1

(=

1

1

7 re—

1

i

| EEBATHT Ms Ada LL Chung, JP

L}

i NFEEMEEEE R RKE General Manager, Companies Registry Trading Fund

| 2019FE9AMH 11 September 2019

|

[}

[}

[}

[}

1
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NRFMEZEEASEREHR
Companies Regqistry Trading Fund
Statement of Changes in Equity

HE2019F3 831 HIEFE
for the year ended 31 March 2019

( LUBHEETF TSR )

(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

EFAAEER Balance at beginning of year 1,280,459 940,574
FEMBEEUINE Total comprehensive income for the year 299,075 339,885
EFREEeS Balance at end of year 1,579,534 1,280,459

25 46 BE 74 BNV AR FEEHRERAN—E65 -
The notes on pages 46 to 74 form part of these financial statements.
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NARFMREEERFEERER
Companies Regqistry Trading Fund
Statement of Cash Flows

HE2019F3 831 HIEFE
for the year ended 31 March 2019

1

1

|

1

1

1

|

]

]

]

]

1

1

1

1

1

:

1

Bl (LUEST T )

. (Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)

1

1

i SEEHNRENE Cash Flows from operating activities

1

: EERF Profit from operations 261,257 300,920
1

i e R i#ds Depreciation and amortisation 24,685 24,229
1

: FETFIE ~ IR REAME Decrease / (Increase) in prepauments, 92 (229)
[ WFRIERYR A / (380) deposits and other receivables

1

: FESRRE A LIRFRAIIE AN Increase in amounts due from related parties (347) (49)
1

i R IEU A RYIE N Increase in deferred revenue 21,497 525
1

: = BIR4E RN Increase in customers' deposits 3,542 1,567
1

| FEATMRFR R At FE(F 57RI8 Increase / (Decrease) in trade and other 21,450 (5,556)
i ROt/ CRiA) payables

1

i FETRRE A TIRFRAY (Decrease) / Increase in amounts due to (21,066) 75,019
! (i) /85 related parties

i EETEF B maYEnn Increase in provision for employee benefits 2,494 1,390
1

: EFREFER Notional profits tax paid - (11,797)
1

[}

i REEERENREREE Net cash from operating activities 313,604 386,019
[}

}

I REEINRERE Cash flows from investing activities

1

: FRBEEBRA 3 @8 L ERY Increase in bank deposits with original (233,000) (523,900)
| ERITIZFRAYIE N maturities over three months

1

| JMERESTFRAY (38) / (Increase) / Decrease in placement with the (20,936) 106,289
i By Exchange Fund

1

i SUF S Interest received 38,155 17,590
1

: BEWME BRI H Purchase of property, plant and equipment (29,105) (18,693)
: mEEE and intangible assets

L}

L}

i AR E eI 2R Net cash used in investing activities (244,886) (418,714)
|

[}

[}

[}

[}

[}

[}

1



Annual Report 2018-19 %R

ik A — FHEERBSRAFIRER

Appendix A — Report of the Director of Audit and Annual Accounts

‘\
(45
O

NRFEFMELEASHEERER (@)
Companies Registry Trading Fund
Statement of Cash Flows (continved)

HE2019F3 831 HIEFE
for the year ended 31 March 2019

( LUEHETTTAITIR )
(Expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars)
RERERESREM / Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash 68,718 (32,695)
(iR ) B8 equivalents
EEFENIRERERIRE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning 23,104 55,799
of year
EFRNRzEREFRRSE Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 17) 91,822 23,104

28 46 HE 74 BRMIEEAARIFRERM—ES -

The notes on pages 46 to 74 form part of these financial statements.
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BTSRRI EE
Notes to the Financial Statements

(Fr5=EIRI - ATERERILUBM T TIIR)
(Amounts expressed in thousands of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated)

1.

Eo
nf

RIALABTE 1993 & 6 A 30 ARiE (&
EBEREH) (B430E) 534 K6
1&3@ERZE E1993 F8 A1 HET
NRAGEMREEREE ("HEE,) - EE
FRAEFREMFF RN - LUHES
RARGEMRESLMER AR

FEEFEEER

(0) HEZERIER
FMBEREEZRREBLRBOEE
AR EERNEBMIERE L
8 (LLFAZHRE EFEEEES
TR AERMAAMEERNENE
AUBREED  FAGHEAR
2E) R AERMNEESE
BURFRAT o

EARAGEMATRM T ETHIER
FEIERTR B AR M E R WA A
BETHAE R AR AT R AT IR AR -
& R E E R E @A 2RI
SIBMERMBRENMROA S
Ruargat e S et R A E (40
B) EHSHIEE3 ©

1.

General

The Companies Registry Trading Fund (“the Fund”) was
established on 1 August 1993 under the Legislative Council
Resolution passed on 30 June 1993 pursuant to sections 3, 4 and
6 of the Trading Funds Ordinance (Cap. 430). The Fund mainly
provides its customers with services and Ffacilities to incorporate
companies and to register and examine company documents.

Significant accounting policies

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs"), a collective term which includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the Fund is set
out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for
the current accounting period of the Fund. Note 3 provides
information on the changes, if any, in accounting policies
resulting from initial application of these developments to
the extent that they are relevant to the Fund for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.
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(b) MREBAIFEIRF|AVERR (b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

A RIS 80 3R RO AR L R 4 L B (A
AAEHE -
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HRERFREERBFHFIE - FETR
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EEHBENER UREERSR
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REMITERREEL N HELASEN
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BA#2E  AERBAEZFETR
BEFEAFEERMEERBRNIR
EERER - A ERNERER
BIEBMTHE -

EZEMETREMEKBOREEFER
fEiRET - AEETRRERTETH
BEMFHEFTRHAAEES - BAR
EXRPRARKBSETH > BRAERT
EE IR AR KR A RS -

EeEERENHENELTER
EARAEA S ST FIE - EEREIRK
EHBRER @ e E AEEHaRE
FRRIFENTHBERE &1 E
BREXER  EHEENMBREN
IRIE £ ERTE SR FRMBIZET

BE2018F 3B 31 HILFEME
TLHREFCEHDIR > UESSE
FEESMBRENEZ®RTH -

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
financial statements is historical cost.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

There are no critical accounting judgements involved in the
application of the Fund's accounting policies. There are
also no key assumptions concerning the future, or other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the next
year.

Certain comparative figures for the year ended
31 March 2018 have been reclassified to conform to
the current year's presentation of the Fund's financial
statements.
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() sMEERESMRAME

(i)

(ii)
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EENERMBERAEEEFRE
FE £ R 7 K L At FE S 57X 7E - FE
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E2EAAEREMIENS
HEP—HZHEBERTH
BEEREMBE - RUARES
B ERMEERERMBERL
FEFE BMNLSAEERR
BRFERMEENRTERSS
MEBEMERSIBHZZEA

2018 % 4 A1 BEMAREH
iR
ERME B BHRELAEO
# RMTA (MEE30) & -
ESRRESHAENABR
LB B A R MM A (A
£ BAEML AR NS
WS TR BN E BT
B BANRSRERMETH
ALEAE - SWAEOERE
RHB I EE 2()(v) A3k O TR
(ERBERAEE -

(c) Financial assets and financial liabilities

(i)

Initial recognition and measurement

The Fund's financial assets comprise placement with the
Exchange Fund, deposits and other receivables, amounts
due from related parties, bank deposits, and cash and
bank balances.

The Fund's financial liabilities comprise customers’
deposits, trade and other payables, amounts due to
related parties and provision for employee benefits.

The Fund recognises financial assets and financial
liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. At initial
recognition, financial assets and financial liabilities are
measured at fair value plus or minus transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets or the issue of the financial liabilities.

Classification and subsequent measurement from
1 April 2018

After the adoption of HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”
(note 3(a)), the Fund classifies all financial assets as
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, on the basis that they are
held within a business model whose objective is to
hold them for collection of contractual cash flows and
the contractual cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest. The measurement of loss
allowances for financial assets is based on the expected
credit loss model as described in note 2(c)(v).
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(i)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and of allocating and recognising the interest
income or interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset or
financial liability to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset or to the amortised cost of the financial
liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the
Fund estimates the expected cash flows by considering
all contractual terms of the financial instrument but does
not consider the expected credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees paid or received between parties to
the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums
or discounts.

The Fund classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

The Fund reclassifies a financial asset when and only
when it changes its business model for managing the
asset. A financial liability is not reclassified.

Classification and subsequent measurement prior to
1 April 2018

Under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement”, the Fund's financial assets, which were
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that were not quoted in an active market
and which the Fund had no intention of trading, were
classified as loans and receivables and were carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less
impairment losses, if any (note 2(c)(vi)).

N
LA~



“~. Kf#% Appendices
50 |~

[ANGA
LA

P e

gk A — B EERBSRAFIRER

Appendix A — Report of the Director of Audit and Annual Accounts

(iv)

2018 F4 B 1 HRIE&E2MEREA
BN ERHBETEE 2018 F
4 B 1 B#ERIAER) (BHEE 2(c)(ii) )°

ALEHRERD
ENXeRMEENNREREN
BREFERES  HEEeRE
= E R A #AE AR E R
REMOEERS ZeMEE
GRET RS o

B & fE R E T KR FR e Y
H ENEEARY ZEMBET
AT EHFESS

2018F 4 B 1 HEMNEMEE
B

BRNEEMBRELRE9
5% (Bi5E 3(0)) # > BEARE
HRAEENEMEERRA
A 3 B ER MR B 73 AT B TR
HE MBI RERBHEENEIER
BRI B R IRE A5 - FAHA
ERBIBRETEEREUAN B
iaREES LR AY(E A E It

2 1BkE: - 12 (AR FREAE ARSIR
EHBEVIRMERLIK - 2R T AW
15 F3 L e 6 S K MBAE 0 » Kk A
TREAEREs R R R E RS B
12 BR A ATHEBR L REMEH
B O FREME A E5RRYER 2 T 1L

The classification of the Fund's financial liabilities and
their subsequent measurement prior to 1 April 2018 were
the same as those from 1 April 2018 (note 2(c)(ii)).

Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or where the financial asset together with
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled, or
when it expires.

Impairment of financial assets from 1 April 2018

After the adoption of HKFRS 9 (note 3(a)), the Fund
applies a three-stage approach to measure expected
credit losses on financial assets measured at amortised
cost and to recognise the corresponding loss allowances
and impairment losses or reversals, with the change
in credit risk since initial recognition determining the
measurement bases for expected credit losses:

Stage 1: 12-month expected credit losses

For financial instruments for which there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
the portion of the lifetime expected credit losses that
represent the expected credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date are recognised.




Annual Report 2018-19 R

=151

gk A — B EERBSRAFIRER

Appendix A — Report of the Director of Audit and Annual Accounts

52 BEEY | KA TRHASFAEIE -
FFERREIE

HEMRERLUK 2T A
8915 A JEL B A& g 0 - B30 Ik
EREE  KATREEREE
(ReRfEEm T EATREE 2
AT A AR IR AV E 1451
HOTRHAEARE ) T LUMERS -

5 3 MR | KA TRHAS ABAIE -
ERRIE

eI ACSREERREIE"

BERBKATAEERAREE  F

BUTARIFE B RRF RET A

A A EMIFIREEARERETE -

ZLeT 7 T (S A g A& 25
EBEREH BEEFELEES
AT ERERE A RIS EEE
HEAfEER T RVTREA R SR H
BENOERE  UFEEMIT
AEMEREREEAMEEN -
AR LEEEHEREGER
SREH - LR ERTAEMAIER
HRE-AHSN-BHES
MEEMNGBSIRKRRERESR
THRENEH  ZeREE
BRI ERERREE -

Ao EMNESGEE AR TG
B BUREAARES
AIBEM - BAZEFFEMES
cRITERARERERESE
MR - WERRERR
15 R 5Tk R EL At ABRA I 35

Stage 2: Lifetime expected credit losses - not credit
impaired

For financial instruments for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
but that are not credit impaired, lifetime expected credit
losses representing the expected credit losses that result
from all possible default events over the expected life of
the financial instrument are recognised.

Stage 3: Lifetime expected credit losses - credit impaired

For financial instruments that have become credit
impaired, lifetime expected credit losses are recognised
and interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost rather than
the gross carrying amount.

Determining significant increases in credit risk

At each reporting date, the Fund assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for financial
instruments since initial recognition by comparing the
risk of default occurring over the remaining expected life
as at the reporting date with that as at the date of initial
recognition. The assessment considers quantitative and
qualitative historical information as well as forward-
looking information. A financial asset is assessed to be
credit impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
that financial asset have occurred.

The Fund assesses whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition on an
individual or collective basis. For collective assessment,
financial instruments are grouped on the basis of shared
credit risk characteristics, taking into account investment
type, credit risk ratings and other relevant factors.
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Placements with banks with an external credit rating of
investment grade are considered to have a low credit
risk. Other financial instruments are considered to have
a low credit risk if they have a low risk of default and
the counterparty or borrower has a strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term. The credit risk on these financial instruments is
assessed as not having increased significantly since
initial recognition.

When a financial asset is uncollectible, it is written
off against the related loss allowance. Such assets
are written off after all the necessary procedures
have been completed and the amount of the loss has
been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses of a financial instrument are an
unbiased and probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses (i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls) over
the expected life of the financial instrument. A cash
shortfall is the difference between the cash flows due to
the Fund in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Fund expects to receive. For a financial
asset that is credit impaired at the reporting date,
the Fund measures the expected credit losses as the
difference between the asset's gross carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate.
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(vi) 2018 £ 4 B 1 HeiMI2mEE (vi) Impairment of financial assets prior to 1 April 2018
WAE
ERMEENREES ESER The carrying amount of financial assets was reviewed
SHMELHFTG LEEERE at each reporting date to determine whether there was
BEMREEE - EFERE objective evidence of impairment. If any impairment
BE REBESLUEEEDN evidence existed, an impairment loss was recognised
REEEREREANETFF X in the statement of comprehensive income as the
BT AXNGTEETEEARKIR difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
EREMNREZHENELE & present value of estimated future cash flows discounted
E2HENZRAER - MEBR at the asset’s original effective interest rate. If in a
{EEERK > WEEFEREMER subsequent period, the amount of such impairment loss
HEEBEREIRNSE AR decreased and the decrease could be linked objectively
Al EEBEEEEZENER to an event occurring after the impairment loss had been
A a5 o recognised, the impairment loss was reversed through
the statement of comprehensive income.
(d) #% - BRfEREEM (d) Property, plant and equipment
£1993 F 8 B 1 HEHEESERM Property, plant and equipment appropriated to the Fund
ZIEME - HEEREBEM UK on 1 August 1993 were measured initially at deemed cost
KAEZLUBIN AR E£HRE equal to the value contained in the Legislative Council
FRATSIEYE{EANR - 2528 1993 & Resolution for the setting up of the Fund. Property, plant
8B 1 HEENSIEME « HiERE and equipment acquired since 1 August 1993 are capitalised
M BIRUEERMNEREERS at their costs of acquisition.
A o
LITRIEME - BB RBMLEAR The Ffollowing property, plant and equipment are stated at
HING BETINE REMRIBIERIET cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
& (BiIEE 2(F)) - losses (note 2(F)):
£1993 £ 8 B 1 HE#MHMELE buildings held for own use appropriated to the Fund on
RmE s & 1 August 1993; and
Sl Rt BIREREEEM - plant and equipment, including computer equipment,
FEARKE RERHMIEM - furniture and fittings, motor vehicles and other equipment.
y,
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Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value,
on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

- Buildings 30 years
- Computer equipment 5 years
- Furniture, fittings and equipment 5 years

Motor vehicles 5 years

The land on which the Fund's buildings are situated as
appropriated to the Fund on 1 August 1993 is regarded as a
non-depreciating asset.

Gains or losses arising from the disposal of property, plant
and equipment are determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, and are recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income at the date of disposal.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets include acquired computer software
licences and capitalised development costs of computer
software programmes. Expenditure on development
of computer software programmes is capitalised if
the programmes are technically feasible and the Fund
has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes direct
labour and cost of materials. Intangible assets are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment

losses (note 2(F)).

Amortisation of intangible assets is charged to the
statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis
over the assets' estimated useful lives of 5 years.
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(F)

Impairment of fixed assets

The carrying amounts of fixed assets, including property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, are reviewed at
each reporting date to identify any indication of impairment.
If there is an indication of impairment, an impairment loss
is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income
whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs to sell and value in use.

Deferred revenue

If a customer pays consideration, or the Fund has an
unconditional right to consideration, before the Fund
transfers a service to the customer, the Fund recognises
The Fund
derecognises the deferred revenue and recognises revenue

its contract liability as deferred revenue.

when the Fund transfers the service and, therefore, satisfies
its performance obligation.

Notional profits tax

The Fund has no tax liability under the Inland Revenue
Ordinance (Cap. 112). However, prior to 27 December 2017,
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (“the Government”) had required the Fund to pay to
the Government an amount in lieu of profits tax (i.e. notional
profits tax) calculated on the basis of the provisions of the
Inland Revenue Ordinance. The accounting policies adopted
by the Fund for notional profits tax were as follows:

(i) Notional profits tax expense for the year comprised
current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities.

(ii) Current tax was the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.
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(iii) Deferred tax assets and liabilities arose from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arose from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

RIl deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets
to the extent that it was probable that future taxable
profits would be available against which the assets
could be utilised, were recognised.

The amount of deferred tax recognised was measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities were not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset was
reviewed at each reporting date and was reduced to
the extent that it was no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit would be available to allow the related tax
benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction was reversed
to the extent that it became probable that sufficient
taxable profit would be available.

However, the Fund is no longer required to pay notional
profits tax with effect from 27 December 2017. The balance
of notional profits tax payable and the balance of deferred
tax liabilities as at 27 December 2017 were derecognised,
with corresponding income recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March 2018
(note 6).
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(i)

Revenue recognition

From 1 April 2018, after the adoption of HKFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers” (note 3(b)), the Fund
recognises revenue from contracts with customers when it
satisfies a performance obligation by transferring a promised
service to a customer, at the amount of consideration to
which the Fund expects to be entitled in exchange for the
service. Prior to 1 April 2018, revenue was recognised as
services were provided.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Employee benefits

The employees of the Fund comprise civil servants and
contract staff. Salaries, staff gratuities, and annual leave
entitlements are accrued and recognised as expenditure
in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by the staff. For civil servants, staff on-costs, including
pensions and housing benefits provided to the staff by
the Government, are charged as expenditure in the year in
which the associated services are rendered.

For civil servants employed on pensionable terms, their
pension liabilities are discharged by reimbursement of the
staff on-costs charged by the Government. For other staff,
contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are charged to the statement of comprehensive income as
incurred.

Related parties

The Fund is a separate accounting entity within the
Government established under the Trading Funds Ordinance.
During the year, the Fund has entered into transactions
with various related parties, including government bureaux
and departments, other trading funds and financially
autonomous bodies controlled or significantly influenced by
the Government, in the ordinary course of its business.
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(I) Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at the date of
acquisition.

3. Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued certain new or revised HKFRSs that are
effective for the current accounting period. None of them impact
on the accounting policies of the Fund except for the adoption of
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 as set out below.

The Fund has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period
(note 22).

(@) HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39. It sets out the requirements
for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial
liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial
items.

The Fund has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to items that
existed as at 1 April 2018 in accordance with the transition
requirements without restating comparative information.
The carrying amounts of the items as at 1 April 2018 have
not been impacted by the initial application of HKFRS 9. The
nature and effect of the changes to previous accounting
policies are set out below.
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Classification of financial assets

HKFRS 9 classifies financial assets into three principal
categories: measured at (i) amortised cost; (ii) at fair value
through other comprehensive income; and (iii) at Fair
value through profit or loss. These supersede HKAS 39's
categories of held-to-maturity investments, loans and
receivables, available-for-sale financial assets and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. The classification
of financial assets under HKFRS 9 is based on the business
model under which the financial asset is managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics.

The Fund's financial assets previously classified as loans
and receivables (carried at amortised cost) were reclassified
to financial assets measured at amortised cost (note 2(c)(ii)).
The carrying amounts as at 31 March 2018 were the same
as those as at 1 April 2018.

Impairment of financial assets

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in HKAS 39
with the “expected credit loss” model. The expected credit
loss model requires an ongoing measurement of credit risk
associated with a financial asset and therefore recognises
expected credit losses earlier than under the “incurred loss”
accounting model in HKAS 39. The Fund applies the new
expected credit loss model to the financial assets measured
at amortised cost (note 2(c)(v)). The initial application of the
new impairment requirements had no impact on the carrying
amounts of the financial assets as at 1 April 2018.
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HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue and some costs from contracts with
customers, replacing HKAS 18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11
“Construction contracts”. HKFRS 15 also introduces
additional disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to understand the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from contracts with customers.

In accordance with the transition requirements, the Fund has
elected to apply HKFRS 15 retrospectively only to contracts
that were not completed before 1 April 2018 without
restating comparative information. The initial application
of HKFRS 15 has not impacted the carrying amounts of any
items as at 1 April 2018.

The accounting policies for revenue adopted under
HKFRS 15 (note 2(i)) have not affected the amounts of any
items in the year ended 31 March 2019 compared to the
previous accounting policies.
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4. Revenue from contracts with customers

r{ ) 2018

AR EEME Incorporation fees 228,155 262,917
BERRRELE Annual registration fees 227,586 216,750
HEXHELE Charges registration fees 11,696 11,882
EMRFENNE Search and copying fees 103,197 93,309
EIE R AUARTSE R Fees for administration and collection services 17,636 11,009
S AR RISIRMEE Fees under trust or company service providers 8,839 -
BHEHEER licensing regime
HithER Other fees 53,982 51,866
HEm Total 651,091 647,733
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BRIFRIERFEITRAEE - WFEREE
BRIZ R A LA FERINE -

EAREATREEERKKRE S
| B2 ERRHERBIOREETELN
B WRER MR ERIEIZER AT
NHERRBE -

The Fund's performance obligations in contracts with customers
mainly involve providing services to incorporate companies and
to register and examine company documents to the customers.
A customer is required to pay a fixed amount of service fee for
each service in advance. For incorporation of a company, the
Fund satisfies its performance obligation and recognises the
fee at a point in time on completion of the service by issuing a
certificate of incorporation, and a customer may apply for refund
of a major part of the advance payment in case of unsuccessful
incorporation. For registration and examination of company
documents, the Fund satisfies its performance obligation as the
service is rendered and recognises the fee over time based on a
cost-to-cost method.

For administration and collection services provided to related
parties, the Fund satisfies its performance obligation as the
service is rendered and recognises a service fee over time on a
full cost recovery basis.

RS
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E2Mm2018E3 A1 HEEEHITE With effect from 1 March 2018, the Fund also administers the
AT RIFIEMEREHIE - B2/ licensing regime for trust or company service providers. The
RIEEZEIEHIGBEHRGE - DIKES Fund's services mainly include granting or renewing a licence,
RNEEFEBABREIECNERERESE and monitoring and ensuring the licensee’s compliance with
BEMNEEFRRORE - MBENERE the statutory customer due diligence and record-keeping
B3IF FEAREHMETEENR requirements. R licence is usually valid for three years and
BERH BEeETIRERBNRBRET a licensee is required to pay a fixed amount of service fee in
BHIEE  WFERSRE IR E R ATED advance. The Fund satisfies its performance obligation as
U & o the service is rendered and recognises the fee over time on a

straight-line basis.

5. EERNAF 5. Operating costs
2019 2018
BTEH Staff costs 270,460 233,108
—MBEEERSZ General operating expenses 91,495 86,190
ITE R i#H Depreciation and amortisation 24,685 24,229
FROfTEE A Central administration overheads 2,723 2,666
B:TEH Audit fees 471 620
EE Total 389,834 346,813
6. HttltA 6. Otherincome
2019 2018
RITEFFE Interest from bank deposits 18,641 5,949
IIMERESTFRFE Interest from placement with the Exchange Fund 19,177 15,057
SEEEMERE R B EFEIR K Derecognition of notional profits tax payable and - 17,959
BIERIERE deferred tax liabilities
YRR Total 37,818 38,965
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742017 F£12 B 27 Hel » B EKRA
EEESABRXTRENERE
g B 12017 F£12 B 27 B #&E &
R —RRANENEHEERRLAZE
BEEMAEBREMLHR - RIBZ
IR #G (EERE R0 BRI
EREERSHNTAEPEEREREMK
BRTRETRIRR AR EAVEERR

BRRARBERTMBLE- B
2017 12 R 27 Bt - AL ERSE
ABRABNAXTRENGERERE - 18
2017 %12 H27H" B # 10695 &
ATHNENRENEREFZRAH
7264 BERHEERIEEES WK
FHIEES - AR ARITEEZE 2018 F
3 A 31 HEFEARZEWRERPE -

EEE&ED#HRE

BEEENRREUBEZEME (TE
FERBWARFBEXH) BRUEEEE
FRERE WL BN ARRE -
BIEEEQEME  RBRFIMMER
BE - TREEAE T LLERRM AR R
FEENEEEEBERBESE 57%
(2018 F : 5.7%)

Prior to 27 December 2017, the Government had required all
trading funds to pay notional profits tax and dividends to the
Government. On 27 December 2017, the Court of Final Appeal
handed down its judgement in a judicial review case concerning
the Office of the Communications Authority Trading Fund.
According to the judgement, it was an error of law to construe
the Trading Funds Ordinance as permitting the inclusion in
budgets of the trading fund of projections for notional tax or
dividends.

Subsequent to the judgement, the Government made a change
in financial arrangement whereby all trading funds are no
longer required to pay notional profits tax and dividends to the
Government with effect from 27 December 2017. The balances
of notional profits tax payable of HK$10.695 million and deferred
tax liabilities of HK$7.264 million as at 27 December 2017
were derecognised, with corresponding income recognised in
the statement of comprehensive income for the year ended
31 March 2018.

Rate of return on fixed assets

The rate of return on fixed assets is calculated as total
comprehensive income (excluding interest income and interest
expenses) divided by average net fixed assets, and expressed
as a percentage. Fixed assets include property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets. The Fund is expected to
meet a target rate of return on fixed assets of 5.7% (2018: 5.7%)
per year as determined by the Financial Secretary.

Y
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:I _____________________________________________________________________________________________
i En -
| 8. ¥IR - RimkEM 8. Property, plant and equipment
|
i +iR RE RE
I EREEY) £ ) YSEST AE bELE
: Land and Computer  Furniture, Motor Total
i buildings equipment fittings and  vehicles
: equipment
1
1
i & Cost
1
: 1£2017F481H At 1 April 2017 398,511 40,483 23,736 244 462,974
1
i #8110 Additions - 3,975 6,872 - 10847
1
. 1£2018F 3 H31H At 31March 2018 398,511 44,458 30,608 244 473,821
1
: 1N Additions - 3,318 1,926 - 5,244
1
i f£20195F 3 HA31H At 31March 2019 398,511 47,776 32,534 244 479,065
1
1
1
| REHAE Accumulated depreciation
1
i 1£2017F481H At 1 April 2017 103,700 34,350 22,580 224 160,854
1
: FREH Charge for the year 4,445 1,991 512 20 6,968
1
i £2018F 3 H31H At 31March 2018 108,145 36,341 23,092 244 167,822
1
i FREHR Charge for the year 4,444 2,895 1,981 - 9,320
1
) f£2019F 3 H31H At31March 2019 112,589 39,236 25,073 244 177142
1
1
i IREFE Net book value
i f£2019 %3 H31H At31March 2019 285,922 8,540 7,461 - 301,923
[}
: £2018F 3 A31H At 31March 2018 290,366 8,117 7,516 - 305,999
|
|
}
]
1
[}
[}
[}
[}
1
1
1
1
|
1
1
1
1
|
[}
[}
[}
L}
L}
L}
]
[}
[}
[}
[}
[}
[}
[}
[}
[}
1
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9. BI-EE 9. Intangible assets
ERSE I RR R R R B A A
Computer software licences and system development costs
2019 2018
o723 Cost
EF At beginning of year 295,021 281,465
N Additions 27,266 13,556
TEEFAR At end of year 322,287 295,021
REHHEH Accumulated amortisation
EEF At beginning of year 260,390 243,129
FHREHR Charge for the year 15,365 17,261
TEFAR At end of year 275,755 260,390
IRERE Net book value
TEERR At end of year 46,532 34,631
10.9 M EEEFRK 10.Placement with the Exchange Fund
NEELIFFHEE A 47606 B8 T The balance of the placement with the Exchange Fund
(2018 F : 4551248 &t ) H amounted to HK$476.06 million (2018: HK$455.124 million),
4VEHET (2018 F 41188 T ) BEXD being the principal sum of HK$410 million (2018: HK$410 million)
6,606 E#&JT (2018 : 45124 &E#EiT) and interest paid but not yet withdrawn at the reporting date
AIREHSARERKRERNFE - %17 of HK$66.06 million (2018: HK$45.124 million). The term of the
B E (HEFBEERT)  BIARTHE placement is six years from the date of placement, during which
EEAE o the amount of principal sum cannot be withdrawn.
NERESTEFFMEZEBE1 AEEHNE Interest on the placement is payable at a fixed rate determined
TERGE - ZERZIERELSKEM every January. The rate is the average annual investment
ERECENFEYEEREMRIE 5 return of the Exchange Fund's Investment Portfolio for the past
3FHHRESE L —EEENTHE six years or the average annual yield of three-year Government
ElEE > MENEESE ' TRAE0% - Bonds for the previous year subject to a minimum of zero
2019 FEEEXRAEE 2.9% 2018 &F percent, whichever is the higher. The interest rate has been
BEBE 4.6% - fixed at 2.9% per annum Ffor the year 2019 and at 4.6% per
annum for the year 2018.
J
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M. FTRIA ~ IRER Hith
FBULFKIR

TR RUR

rE
FESTERTTTFRA R
FESTIMNER EFFFE

e

Prepayments

Deposits

Total

11. Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

2019 2018

Accrued interest from bank deposits

Accrued interest from placement with the Exchange Fund

6,500 6,592
4 4
3,772 2,351
3,404 5,162
13,680 14,109

12. BERMS SRR

(a)

FEMFRIRME KB E
MIBHTRAEALHORYE  E8
T HNEBRIRAFEERA 92 BETT
(2018 % * 95 BH#IT ) © RZHEERC
BREEMBRRROBIREEANL
R MEELERZEEGNEE -
EREHRTLRORE > ARER
STEHRBER RALEEARE
BRGNS B E -

GRIRIE
EEEWNEFEMNERRAR
FRERBIOEE  ERHHERR
RALLEEABIFZX TN - 247
-

12.Contract balances with customers

(@

Receivables and contract assets

For services provided to related parties, the balance of
receivables at the reporting date of HK$0.92 million
(2018: HK$0.95 million) is included in the amounts due
from related parties in the statement of financial position
and the Fund does not have any contract assets. For
services provided to the general public, since customers pay
the service fees in advance, the Fund does not have any
receivables or contract assets.

Contract liabilities

The Fund's obligations to provide services to customers
for which the Fund has received advance payments from
the customers are presented as deferred revenue in the
statement of financial position, as analysed below:

2019 2018

TEIEUTA Deferred revenue

SEEARIRISIRMESE Fees under trust or company service providers 25,511 7,913
BHETIEER licensing regime

HittARFEER Other service fees 6,338 2,439

M Total 31,849 10,352
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2019 2018
= : Representing:
mENRE Current liabilities 17,041 5,136
IFEREAGE Non-current liabilities 14,808 5,216
azE Total 31,849 10,352
FEEW ARG ERSH S The balances of deferred revenue above represent the
BEXRXERT (NLHREREIT) aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the
MENETINZZEREE - B2 performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially
YEX - EEEA R RBIEHE RS unsatisfied) at the reporting date. For the deferred revenue
HIEREZWAE R 3 FRERE under the licensing regime for trust or company service
B A 0 T E B IE UG A B & A providers, the Fund expects to recognise as revenue within
1 FREEDRERA - BEEARE about three years. For other deferred revenue, the Fund
EHRINRERMAZZER ° expects to recognise as revenue within one year. No
consideration from contracts with customers is not included
in the transaction price.
FRELEW AR E XS ENR Significant changes in the balances of deferred revenue
HanF - during the year are shown below:
R EEEIIARIFEER  Decrease due to recognition as revenue during (5.136) (9.827)
R FEREREFEABIA the year that was included in the balances of
iR deferred revenue at beginning of year
RERUERIFEMERM Increase due to advance payments received 26,633 10,352
10 during the year
13.EEiEF)iE{E 13. Provision For employee benefits
b EFEETERE B TR MR RIS HE T This represents the estimated liability for employees’ annual
BEFRAGBETERE (RMEE2()) - leave for services rendered up to the reporting date (also see
note 2(j)).
14. 5 EEEESF 14. Trading fund capital
LEABRHERNKRE - This represents the Government's investment in the Fund.
J
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5. B8REE

EFYAAEER Balance at beginning of year - -

A BREEF Transfer from retained earnings (note 16) 550,000 -
(FfFEE16)

EFERER Balance at end of year 550,000 -

BE2019F3 A3 HIEFE 4
AR RMERRERMEBASSE
ATLURIBRERES AT "THHAE
AMEFRETE, ARRBRHESR -

During the year ended 31 March 2019, with the approval of
the Financial Secretary, the Fund set aside an amount of
HKS$550 million from retained earnings to establish a
development fund for financing the implementation of the
Departmental Information Technology Planning projects.

u - -
16. REEF 16. Retained earnings

2019 2018
EFAFEER Balance at beginning of year 1,141,999 659,500
FEREEINE Total comprehensive income for the year 299,075 339,885
HEEERREAS Transfer to development fund (note 15) (550,000) -

(BftzE15)

A BEERE Transfer from proposed dividend = 142,614
R Balance at end of year 891,074 1,141,999

B2017F12R 27 A BE2EAB
MBS (FEE6) - Btk 5
2017 F£12 B 27 HEY A # 142614 8
ATNRRREHBCERE 2018 F
3 B 31 HIEFERBRZERERT -

With effect from 27 December 2017, the Fund is no longer
required to pay dividends to the Government (note 6).
Accordingly, the balance of proposed dividend as at
27 December 2017 of HK$142.614 million was transferred back
to the retained earnings during the year ended 31 March 2018.
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17. RERFRR=E 17. Cash and cash equivalents
2019 2018
e RIRT1THEER Cash and bank balances 91,822 23,104
WITIFR Bank deposits 944,900 711,900
IET Subtotal 1,036,722 735,004
B FRAEERA 388  Less: Bank deposits with original maturities
B ERIERITIERR over three months (944,900) (711,900)
HERERARE Cash and cash equivalents 91,822 23,104
18. BB A THIZZS 18. Related party transactions

B8 T ASLEE ABF SRR A LI AT Apart from those separately disclosed in the financial

S5 EREREALTHEMEERS statements, the other material related party transactions for the

ke - year are summarised as follows:

(o) BE2RHETFEEATAHRIFEIEEM (@) Services provided to related parties included search and

IR - KNE SR IRIE K& copuing services, collection of certain tax-loaded fees and
FEIY  MRERBTEIEREANGE bona vacantia, and the administration of the Money Lenders
MR- KEELREOWEEETSE Registry on behalf of the Government. The total revenue
26263 BEJT (2018 F 11,9430 & derived from these services amounted to HK$26.263 million
BIT) (2018: HK$19.430 million);

(b) FAEATIRHETEESRECIERE (b) Services received from related parties included services
EME  BIEL ~ ENRI ~ 523~ EEE on acquisition of stores, mail, printing, training, information
By KEEIE WAt HFHEE - F technology, building management, rental of accommodation,
REBRE - EFRMBEMNZHE central administration and auditing. The total cost
3,155.5 &L (2018 F:2,9376 & incurred on these services amounted to HK$31.555 million
BIT) & (2018: HK$29.376 million); and

() HEHEATRENEFRRLREHESR (c) Capital expenditure in relation to information technology and
BAEMNEARS  FEEEEI 123 8 renovation services provided by related parties amounted to
AT (2018 F : 603.8 BAETT) © HK$1.23 million (2018: HK$6.038 million).

HEEATHZZANIAEEE®ETA Services provided by or to related parties were charged at the

TN BEKBAREMMANER ; rates payable by the general public where such services were

MEZERBMBEHFEEAL - IEE also available to members of the public, or on a full cost recovery

FRU [E] 2= B8 A% AN 75 T AU - basis where such services were only available to related parties.

J
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| - - -

| 19. BFRIE 19. Capital commitments

|

i EHREH BE2XEEMFHRRBEL At the reporting date, the Fund had capital commitments, so Far
i EBPERXEDT : as not provided for in the financial statements, as follows:

1

1

=
1

1

i ERER R Authorised and contracted for 358,880 20,916

1

! SRR ERZEN Authorised but not yet contracted for 230,125 -

1

1

| B Total 589,005 20,916

1

1

1

1

i

1

1

| 20. 18 ETHRRIE 20.0perating lease commitments

1

i EHRER  REBETAIEEA L KRELE At the reporting date, the total future minimum lease payments
: IS EHERE R RN REESHERIE under non-cancellable operating leases for land and buildings
i HEZEINT - were payable as follows :

1

i 2019 2018

1

1

i THB@E 15 Not later than one year 3,240 3,240

i B8 1 FEET#BE S5 F  Later than one year but not later than five years 945 4,185

1

i Mz Total 4,185 7,425

|

1

[}

[}

|

[}

I — - - -

21 EFE SR 21. Financial risk management

1

[}

| (0) BEBE (a) Investment policy

[}

' EIRHEBEINOWARE  BIRER To provide an ancillary source of income, surplus cash is
i BRI SRITH EHIE R R IMNER placed as fixed-term bank deposits and as placement with
i BTFR © the Exchange Fund.

|

i (b) fZRER (b) Credit risk

i EHERESMTEMN—AEESE Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument
i ERXERTEEMLIBE—FZ will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the other party
: FEIFE AR A G o to incur a financial loss.

[}

|

[}

[}

[}

1
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[ANA
AR

EEWERERR - EEEURNIMNE
BEE2EHN BRERHMEBUIIFIAE
FEULRAE AN TORFR ~ SRITIFRURER
1THEER - BEFTAEMEBUER - Wi
BB R AAIER (S AR -

AHBEMEERER  FrEEHTF
MPATFHR EARFRRTT - EL
ERMEERRABEEAER - B
BEMIZEEN 12 AR FREAE A&
BHNHERTE  BETEME R
BRI T ERX ©

RITERARITHRBNERESR
Dl HERBEERIFTHE - 247
LU

The Fund's credit risk is primarily attributable to placement
with the Exchange Fund, deposits and other receivables,
amounts due from related parties, bank deposits and bank
balances. The Fund has a credit policy in place and the
exposure to these credit risks is monitored on an ongoing
basis.

To minimise credit risks, all fixed deposits are placed with
licensed banks in Hong Kong. These financial assets are
considered to have a low credit risk. The loss allowances
are measured at amounts equal to 12-month expected credit
losses, which are assessed to be immaterial by the Fund.

The credit quality of bank deposits and bank balances,
analysed by the ratings designated by Moody's or their
equivalents, is shown below:

2019 2018

{E FFTEMR : Credit rating:

Aal £ Aa3 Aal to Aa3 150,590 208,772
A1 Z A3 Alto A3 886,100 526,200
wEE Total 1,036,690 734,972

HAHEMEMEERATIRENR

T BHTREME R EREENY -

EREAEENEME EMAKE
&SR ERBEEMEEREIR
M °

AENE & Ef
RBETEMGEREEETREM
BEMERNEEEEZIRHA R -

While other financial assets are subject to the impairment
requirements, their expected credit losses were minimal.

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the financial assets
of the Fund at the reporting date is equal to their carrying
amounts.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter

difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial
liabilities.
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EeRARBREREDMKEE
RBEEERE  EETRAAFENER
EHELRERESNEEES ®
RULECSHEIHERRES
FIEEMIEESEKR - AREEN
REBEE RS R RBE £ ER
K

2= g

) 2 & b 48 (A T 35 F R EH T 5] 2L
B ER: - FIRERATE—S D
BATENRERRFEERENR
& B o

AFEMREREEMTAENAT
BE R 5 H RS 5 mKEE Y E
%o HRBEENBRTERAERR
Mo BHISFRLEH  ELEFHRE
NFEEE T - AT ARFAE
SRITTFRIGRBHAAETIR - ™
N REHTEFEHRMERE
TR FIFNFESE

RernBfREkEEMITENR
RELREGHAT B REE MK
BRERE - RS EAMBERNER
EREBAXREG  HAEENER
R TH TT2FER -

B E R
EwEREeM T AN AFEER
RBEREGHEREMIKENAY
BB o

ETHBAZERBER  EAHEMR
BT EHLUBTTAARLL

The Fund employs projected cash flow analysis to manage
liquidity risk by forecasting the amount of cash required and
monitoring the working capital of the Fund to ensure that all
liabilities due and known funding requirements could be met.
As the Fund has a strong liquidity position, it has a very low
level of liquidity risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from
changes in market interest rates. This can be further
classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow
interest rate risk.

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Since the Fund's bank deposits bear
interest at fixed rates, their fair values will fall when market
interest rates increase. However, as all the bank deposits
are stated at amortised cost, changes in market interest
rates will not affect their carrying amounts and the Fund's
profit and reserves.

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Fund is not exposed to material
cash flow interest rate risk because it has no major financial
instruments bearing interest at a floating rate.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fFluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Fund does not have an exposure to currency risk as all
of its financial instruments are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars.
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22.EfFfREMNREE 2019

() Hftr2mERE
EeANBFE-—REENIIEEE
FHEXR (MEE10) sEEmMEAER
HemEbk: - 52 2019F 38318
fB25% 2018 £ & 2019 FrI SN /
2 50 fE & Eh (2018 & : 50 {&
AR MEAMRZETE - EEFE
B RSN/ L 240 BE
gt (2018 F: 230 &#ET) °

ATFAE
EERTBEENLMIANAT
fERIRIEHE BB EREE -
MAEHEHHEMR  ALIRES
A8 75 5E LR & B R0 R Bk
SEEE AT «

FrEeM I AYUEIATEES
EEET AR EETRFI B TR

3A3THIEFERRK
WAVIEET « MR R
ENAERE
EEAMBRERL LD SEREHE
ABERHSIEET - FEARBIE -
BB FEARRBERE 2019 F
3 A 31 BLEERHRER  TEEE
BATSHRZ AR IRBIRM « KA BIEN T
BB SHR -

o HEF -

EAIEMEERE 165 THE
HKFRS 16 “Leases”

(F)

Other financial risk

The Fund is exposed to financial risk arising from changes
in the interest rate on the placement with the Exchange
Fund which is determined every January (note 10). It was
estimated that, as at 31 March 2019, a 50 basis point
(2018: 50 basis point) increase/decrease in the interest rates
for 2018 and 2019, with all other variables held constant,
would increase/decrease the profit for the year and reserves
by HKS$2.4 million (2018: HK$2.3 million).

Fair values

The Ffair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the reporting
date. In the absence of such quoted market prices, fair
values are estimated using present value or other valuation
techniques, using inputs based on market conditions existing
at the reporting date.

All financial instruments are stated in the statement of
financial position at amounts equal to or not materially
different from their fair values.

22.Possible impact of amendments, new

standards and interpretations issued
but not yet effective for the year
ended 31 March 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA

has issued a number of amendments, new standards and

interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended

31 March 2019 and which have not been early adopted in these

financial statements. These include the following which may be

relevant to the Fund.

LT B2 BRI B AT HIE R

Effective For accounting periods beginning on or after

209 % 1HA1H
1 January 2019

AN

.

7

v
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E2IEREFIER] MERMRRESR
BRI WAETRAt E EE R EETT
iy - SRR ERINZLFIERT
A RBRETANESHHMBRRAEX

TE o

BEBHTEHEERISE 16 4 "HE,
EEMBHREERE 16 SR EAEET
#RAIE 17 5% THE 0 FIEES 512
ERRFEEHEEIER - 5| AE—AIK
MAEEEN - BXRAMEAFRBHRE
@12 EANFEMEENEEREE @ 1#
BEEEENHEERI - RBE BT
FRE R 16 5% > RAMARFEES AR E
ERHEEEENENNEREEERN
MEZMHEESNEFNEERRE - Bit
AHABERBEAEEENEREEER
BEFE - EAREEREERERTR
HEE - SIEEETIRHEERME
T URMAR AR SR EESITE
MRAESEEE  RNERESHEXA
WME - MHBASANS » T8
BIELERNE 16 SRERIMEBRBG A
BIZE 17 SRRV HFAAAEENE

ERURREEANF 6 REIEZER
THA M EAMERLEHEENAMEA
GEtiA- REIERTE RN E5IE
BEERBEEMN UERFEFTHEHR
RREEEEZRA S S HAYRFRE - IE40
BiZE 20 FR#%EE - 52019 F 3 A 318 »
EEHAT AR ERELEEAE
£ 4185 BHEIT - TEES KAYFREER -
EETREIRMZI LR T SR HII R
REEARE -

The Fund is in the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial adoption. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the financial statements.

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 “Leases” and sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases. It introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying
asset is of low value. Under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required
to recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use
the underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing
its obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a lessee
should recognise depreciation of the right-of-use asset and
interest on the lease liability. The right-of-use asset and the
lease liability are initially measured on a present value basis.
The measurement includes non-cancellable lease payments
and payments to be made in optional periods if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend the lease. In
respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Fund's accounting as a lessee
of leases for premises which are currently classified as operating
leases. The application of the new accounting model is expected
to lead to an increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact
on the timing of the expense recognition in the statement
of comprehensive income over the period of the leases. As
disclosed in note 20, the Fund had non-cancellable operating
lease commitments of HK$4.185 million as at 31 March 2019. In
view of the amount involved, the Fund expects that the adoption
of this new standard is unlikely to have a significant effect on its
financial statements.
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Appendix B — Key Workload Statistics for 2018-19
.

’ - /() Bk
BE3PA3HLEFE % Increase/
Year to 31 March
(Decrease)

2019 2018

ENVNSIEE S Registration of New Companies

Kih/AT] Local companies

- B’RAT] - public companies 41 35 17.1
- FLAAR) - private companies 134,134 153,944 (12.9)
- ERAF - guarantee companies 922 969 (4.9)
FEMIFEEAT] Registered non-Hong Kong companies 1,180 1,061 1.2
XHEEE Registration of Documents

P ZIR9 34 Documents received 3,658,405 2,896,426 26.3
FrugEla9$eEe Charges received 21,855 21,444 19
ENREANS Change of name notifications 17,698 18,903 (6.4)
BHENERENE Voluntary liquidation notices 775 777 (0.3)
REEM Company Searches

TR RGOk Document image records searches 5,062,460 4,551,538 1.2
ERAREN Company particulars searches 335,424 291,939 14.9
EREEFESI Directors' index searches 400,327 385,354 39
i Prosecutions

BHES Summonses issued 3,120 2,617 19.2
BIFRITE Striking OFf Actions

bR BB AT Companies struck off 84,695 60,146 40.8
HsHEE M Deregistrations

BEHEMAAT] Companies deregistered 71,758 58,134 23.4
SIEFHLF Licensing For Trust or

IRFSIRME TR’ Company Service Providers'

FrUgZIRYEhEREE New applications received 5,481 1777 n/A
HHAIREEE Licences granted 6,419 - n/A

1. ERESHARRBRUERMEIEEN - N\F=A—HEE - TFEIERIYFE—FaREBLEETER -
The licensing regime for trust or company service providers was implemented on 1 March 2018. Year-on-year changes in key workload statistics are not applicable.
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2018-19 2019-20
TIERR BiE
Achievements Targets

(B1R) (BEXRR)

be ]| Z2 3R /(KR be )]
2018-19 BRFEKE  BRFEKE Bz BRFHIKFE
AR BEKT' wEAL wEAL  BAk | BEKTE wES
Service Service (Target) (Actual) ~ %Over/ | Service % Meeting
Standard ' % Meeting % Meeting ~ (Under) | Standard'  Standard
Standard Standard Achieved

(MIERETE - BINEREERI))

(expressed in working days unless otherwise specified)

VNS
Registration of new companies®
- Ath/AF]
local companies
- WENARR RT3 4 95 98 3 4 95
delivery in hard copy form
- WEFREAAIHE 1 /)\B% hr 90 99 9 1/)\B% hr 90
delivery in electronic form
- FFEELT n 90 99 9 10 90
non-Hong Kong companies

- BIRKELRAT n/A n/A n/A n/A 3 90
open-ended fund companies®

NABEUEE
Change of name of companies
- AHAF]

local companies

- WENARR RT3 4 95 99 4 4 95
delivery in hard copy form

- HEFREAAIHE 1 /)\B% hr 90 99 9 1 /)\B% hr 90
delivery in electronic form

- BIRXELRAT n/A n/A n/A n/A 3 90
open-ended fund companies®

NEIXHER

Registration of general documents

- LUENAR 3RS ¢ 5 90 81 (9) 5 90
delivery in hard copy form*

- LEFRRARERRE® 12 /J\B% hrs 90 100 10 12 /J\BF hrs 90

delivery of specified forms in electronic
form®

=R 7 90 99 9 7 90
Registration of charges

AE)EHEE T
Deregistration of companies

- ESHHUEREHEE M ek i 5 95 99 4 5 95
issue of approval letter
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~
2018-19 2019-20
TIERR HiZ
Achievements Targets
(BiZ) (EBER) ‘
EE ZE BRI/ (ER) ER
2018-19 BRFEIKTE  BRIEKE BiE 1 BRFEIKF
PR 7% RIKE' mESE @EAE 8ok | BBEKE gEsSH
Service Service — (Target) (Actual) % Over / Service . % Meeting
Standard ' 9% Meeting % Meeting ~ (Under) | Standard ' Standard
Standard Standard Achieved
(LLITEHETE - BINABERRI)
(expressed in working days unless otherwise specified)
i L Em
Online search on the internet
- REXERGROFLETE 5 438 mins 95 99 4 5 438 mins 95
supply of image records of documents
for download
- REEMEROEKERA® 3 /\BF hrs 95 100 5 3 /)\B% hrs 95
supply of certified copies of
search results®
- RMEES 6 /]\ES hrs 95 100 5 6 /|\B hrs 95
supply of certificates®
EAREMPLER
Onsite Search at the Public Search Centre
- REEMERMEIAE 20 43§& mins 95 100 5 20 43$& mins 95
supply of hard copies of search results
- RHUEMERERERIAR 3 /)\EF hrs 95 100 5 3 /)\EF hrs 95
supply of certified copies of search results
- RUEE 6 /J\8% hrs 95 100 5 6 /J\B% hrs 95
supply of certificates
EFREUENFRZ N33 20 £§& mins 95 99 4 20 434 mins 95
( EEHHE R )
Onsite delivery of documents
in hard copy form (queving time only)
B ERN AT R MEgE n/A n/A n/A n/A 2 f@+¥A 90
Granting of trust or company service 2.5 mths
provider licences’
1. WENARR RIS A ARFEKE A EIEZAAXME B o LEFRR AT AR K T Al B 3244 34 ARSI REET ©
The ge[vi;e standard for delivery in hard copy form excludes the day of delivery. The service standard for delivery in electronic form is calculated from the time of
e-submission.
2. BELZTHHARZMERREBDERAREMEBBE—HEH -
Business Registration Certificates are issued by the Companies Registry for the Inland Revenue Department together with Certificates of Incorporation.
3. BRBKFETEEESRPEEHEREE T RIERFRIGREEEAR MR EIFRE
The time required by the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC") in processing and delivering the applications to the Registry is excluded.
4. BRARMXESBARESEENXY BB KFETEEESRPESHEEZ MBI RIERR -
For documents reporting appointment of directors of open-ended fund companies, the processing time required by the SFC is excluded.
5. BRFBKFEBFAMRUEFERZ M REZAARZEMEGEENRRRENIEHRE o
The service standard applies to specified forms which are submitted electronically and automatically processed by the Integrated Companies Registry Information System.
6. THEMNBGESRIESEIEMBAIRGR o
Time for delivery by post or by courier service is excluded.
7. BRFBKFLTBERAAELHEDR - BRI ERERSAFE—SHRENRE -
The service standard does not apply to applications for trust or company service provider licences which require amendment, additional information or further investigation.
_/
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